
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

S T A N D A R D S  
C O M M I T T E E  

   

Monday, 4th November, 2013 
 

at 6.30 pm 
   

Council Chamber, Hackney Town Hall, Mare 
Street, London E8 1EA 

  
Committee Membership: 
 
 

Councillor Sophie Linden (Chair), Councillor Simche 
Steinberger, Councillor Geoff Taylor, Councillor Louisa 
Thomson, Councillor Patrick Vernon OBE and Councillor 
Jessica Webb (Vice-Chair) 
 
Julia Bennett, Elizabeth Coates-Thummel, George Gross, 
Adedoja Labinjo and Onagete Louison 

 
Gifty Edila 
Corporate Director 
Legal, HR and Regulatory Services 
 

Contact: 
Robert Walker 
Governance Services 
Tel: 020 8356 3578 
Email: Robert.Walker@Hackney.gov.uk  
 

 

The press and public are welcome to attend this meeting 
 
 
 



 

AGENDA 
Monday, 4th November, 2013 

  

ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 
1.   Apologies for absence   

 
2.   Declarations of interest   

 
3.   Minutes of the previous meeting - 1 July 2013  1 - 4 

 
4.   Standards Committee Hearing - Complaint against Cllr Michael Levy 5 - 330 

Covering report      pages 5-6  
Investigator’s report and appendices               pages 7-322 
Documentation submitted by Cllr Levy   pages 323-328 
Decision of the Assessment Sub-Committee              pages 329-330  

 
5.   Any other business   

Item No Title Page No 



 

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS 
Hackney Council’s Code of Conduct applies to all Members of the Council, the Mayor and 
co-opted Members.  
 
This note is intended to provide general guidance for Members on declaring interests. 
However, you may need to obtain specific advice on whether you have an interest in a 
particular matter. If you need advice, you can contact: 
 

• The Corporate Director of Legal, HR and Regulatory Services; 
• The Legal Adviser to the committee; or 
• Governance Services. 

 
If at all possible, you should try to identify any potential interest you may have before the 
meeting so that you and the person you ask for advice can fully consider all the 
circumstances before reaching a conclusion on what action you should take.  

 

1.  Do you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter on the 
agenda or which is being considered at the meeting? 

You will have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter if it:  
 

i. relates to an interest that you have already registered in Parts A and C of the Register of 
Pecuniary Interests of you or your spouse/civil partner, or anyone living with you as if 
they were your spouse/civil partner; 

 
ii. relates to an interest that should be registered in Parts A and C of the  Register of 

Pecuniary Interests of your spouse/civil partner, or anyone living with you as if they were 
your spouse/civil partner, but you have not yet done so; or 

 
iii. affects your well-being or financial position or that of your spouse/civil partner, or 

anyone living with you as if they were your spouse/civil partner. 

 

2.  If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in an item on the 
agenda you must: 

i. Declare the existence and nature of the interest (in relation to the relevant agenda item) 
as soon as it becomes apparent to you (subject to the rules regarding sensitive 
interests).  

 
ii. You must leave the room when the item in which you have an interest is being 

discussed.  You cannot stay in the meeting room or public gallery whilst discussion of 
the item takes place and you cannot vote on the matter.  In addition, you must not seek 
to improperly influence the decision. 

 
iii. If you have, however, obtained dispensation from the Monitoring Officer or Standards 

Committee you may remain in the room and participate in the meeting.  If dispensation 
has been granted it will stipulate the extent of your involvement, such as whether you 
can only be present to make representations, provide evidence or whether you are able 
to fully participate and vote on the matter in which you have a pecuniary interest. 



3.  Do you have any other non-pecuniary interest on any matter on 
the agenda which is being considered at the meeting? 

You will have ‘other non-pecuniary interest’ in a matter if: 
 
i. It relates to an external body that you have been appointed to as a Member or in 

another capacity; or  
 
ii. It relates to an organisation or individual which you have actively engaged in supporting. 

 

4. If you have other non-pecuniary interest in an item on the agenda 
you must: 

i. Declare the existence and nature of the interest (in relation to the relevant agenda item) 
as soon as it becomes apparent to you.  

 
ii. You may remain in the room, participate in any discussion or vote provided that 

contractual, financial, consent, permission or licence matters are not under 
consideration relating to the item in which you have an interest.   

 
iii. If you have an interest in a contractual, financial, consent, permission or licence matter 

under consideration, you must leave the room unless you have obtained a dispensation 
from the Monitoring Officer or Standards Committee.  You cannot stay in the room or 
public gallery whilst discussion of the item takes place and you cannot vote on the 
matter.  In addition, you must not seek to improperly influence the decision.  Where 
members of the public are allowed to make representations, or to give evidence or 
answer questions about the matter you may, with the permission of the meeting, speak 
on a matter then leave the room. Once you have finished making your representation, 
you must leave the room whilst the matter is being discussed.   
 

iv. If you have been granted dispensation, in accordance with the Council’s dispensation 
procedure you may remain in the room.  If dispensation has been granted it will stipulate 
the extent of your involvement, such as whether you can only be present to make 
representations, provide evidence or whether you are able to fully participate and vote 
on the matter in which you have a non pecuniary interest.   

 

Further Information 

Advice can be obtained from Gifty Edila, Corporate Director of Legal, HR and Regulatory 
Services, on 020 8356 3265 or email Gifty.Edila@hackney.gov.uk 

 
 

 

 
FS 566728 
 
 



�
�
�
��������	
�����������	
���������������	��������

�
�	���������������������

�
���������� �!�" "�#$��
�

�������"�%%��&'�������������� &��(�) ����
�����!&#���*�+"�����	,��&�-�������"  ��&�."//�
0+��"1�(&�������#("��(&��2��

� �
��1�3#"" �!�" "�#$� ����&�,"��"##���"��4"����  ���-"-�5&��&/��5��&�-�

	�&4"#"����� ���
� �
�3���4�" $��
�

���6&/"#(���&#" 1�(�))"����������������3(�"�
���-"��&�-��������������)�("��#"��/"�4"��
�

	%%��"� �����##"�-&��"$� ,���"��"7��"�0"&-��%�,� ��"  ���&�' � �&�-�
��)3�&��# 2����%#'��-��&�0���3��&#"����"�#����%�
�"4&�����&�-��"4��&#��'��"�7��" 2�&�-���/"�#�
.&�*"��0��7"��&��"��"�7��" �	%%��"�2�

� �
�� �33���#)"�#��%��(&���%���#("�����8�9�������3&���"&���
�
���� ���	�+��� ����� ��	
����� ��
��
� ��� ������� ��� ������ ��� ���� ���
������

���������������������������	
������������
�
�� �33���#)"�#��%�+��"1�(&���%���#("�����8�9�������3&���"&���
�
���� ���	�+��� ����� ��	
���������� ��� ������� ��� ���� ������ ��� ���� ���
������

���������������������������	
������������
�
�� �3���4�" �%���&/ "��"��
�
���� !���"������������
��������������������
�
9� �"��&�&#��� ��%���#"�" #��
�
���� #�����$����
�����������
������
��������
�
:� ����#" ��%�#("�3�"7��� �)""#��4�1��;��3����������
�
%��� #�����
	�����������������	�������
"������
��&���!���������$����������������

����	���
�����	�������������
�
<� ��)3�&��# � �)3��7")"�#� .��*� &�-� ��)3�&��# � &�-� �")/"� =� ��>���'�

����&���"3��#�����8����
�
'��� (�	��� )����� �
����	���� ���� ������� ��� ���� ���������*� $����� ���������

�
��������
� �
� ���� ������
��� ���������
�� $��+*� ������
��� ��������� �
��
,������ �
-	������ ���� ��������� � #��� ������� ���� "���� �
� �������$� ��� �	�	���
���
"����������������
��������������

�

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



���-&'��� #����'��������
'��� ��	
����� #����� $������� ���� ������� �
�� -	������ $������� ������ $��� �
��

��
�����+�
"� ����� �������� �
� ������ ��� "�	"��$������� ���� �����������
� ������
$��������������$�����������	������������(�	���)������������������
-	����������
������	��� ���
������ ��� ������ ���� �	���������� ��$����*� ����� ���� 
��� �������
����� ��"����
"�������
��� �
� ���������$������ ������	
���� � .
��������
*� ����
�	�����������
�������������������"�
������
������
������
�$��
"� ����������
��
�
��������
��
���������������
�������������
����

�
'��� /��$�
"� �� -	�����
� ����� 0
�"���� ��	���
*� (�	��� )����� �1���
��� �����

�������+� ����� ���� ����� 2����
��
�� 0��	����
� ���� �
�������� ����� ����

	����� ��� ������
��� ���
"� ��������� ��� ����0��	����
�$��� ��
�����
��$����
������������������	������������(�	���)�����������
������������������"	��������
����������
��
��3�	
"�4����5������������
�����������
�����"�����%����$����
���������
���1���
���������������$�������
���$������������������������������

�
'��� .
� �����
��� ��� �� -	�����
� �������	
����� 6��
�
*� (�	���)����� ���	���� ����

���������� ����� ������	
��� $��� ������� "������
"� �
��������
� �
� ������
���
��������� ��"����
"��	������������������*�$��������� ����
��������	
���� ����
��
�������������	
����

�
'�%� ��	
�����#�����
�$������� ���� ���	���
�-	���������+�
"� �����
���� �����

������
���������
"���������$�	����������������������
�������
�����������"����
/��$�
"�-	�����
���������	
�����#�����
*�(�	���)������1���
������������
��	
��� �
�� 7��+
��� 7����� $���� ��� �������� �
"�"�
"� $���� ������ ���������
����
� �����
����� ���� �����
��
"� ��� ������
��� ��� ������� ����� ����� ���	�� ���
���+�
"� ��������������� ��������
������
�"���� �(�	���)����������������� �����
������	
��*�����������������
"��
"�������
������������
��$��+*�$�	����+����
��$� ����-	�������� �������� �����
���� ���,�������
-	������ ��	����� �����������
7�������
��	��"���,������������
����������������������
����
���
��$��������
�
�����"����
������
��������
�����������,�������
-	�������

�
'�'� .
� �����
��� ���-	�����
�� �����8	���(�

���*�(�	���)������������ ��������������

$���� �
���	����� ��� ���$ 	�� �
� $����
"� $��
� �����
��
"� ��� ������
��� ���
������
��� � 7�� ���� ��+
�$��"��� ����� ���� ��	
��� 
������ ��� ��� ����� ��� 
��������
��
��	��"�
"��������������"��������
���������������

�
'�9� .
� �����
��� ��� �� �	������ -	�����
� ����� 8	��� (�

���*� (�	���)����� �1���
���

���������������
����"����������
�����	�����������	�����
����������������
"������
$������ ��
������ �
�� ���� ������
�����
� ��� ���� 
�$� �������� � (�	��� )�����
��"��"�������$����*����������������
����"����������
���$��������
����������
�
��������������������������
������������������
�������

�
'�&� 2����� :���� �������� ���� ���������� ����� ���� ������ :1��	����� ���� �
���	�����

�������
�� ���������� ��� ��
�"�� ���"�� �� ������
�� �����
���� �
�� ���	���� ����
���������� ����� ���� ��	
��� $��� ���������� ��� ���+�
"� ����� ����	���
� ��� ��
������
���� � 2����� :���� ���� ������� ����� ������� ��� 	���	� ���� (�	���)����� ���
���������� �	����������
��� ��� �������� �������
�"�����
���$������ ��������
�����
������
����
��������"
����������������

�
'�;� .
� �����
��� �����-	�����
� ������������*�(�	���)������1���
��� �������
�$�

����	���� ������� ��� ������� ������
���$�	�� ��� �
����	���� �
�0������� �������
#���
�
"�$�	�������������� �������������
���$� ��� �������������
��*� ����	"��
��������	���� ����$����$����������	���������
	����������������� �����������
��

Page 2



���-&'��� #����'��������
�	
����
��� � (�	��� )����� �	��
��� ��$� ���� 
�$� ����$���� $�	�� �������� ����
��	
��5��������� ��� ����+�������
��� ��"����
"� ��������� ���	����������������
��
�������� ������� � ����
��� ,������� $�	�� ���� ��� ���� ��� ����+� �
�� ��
�����
������
�������	"������
�$�����$�����

�
'���� #��� ���������� ���
+��� ��������� ���� ���� ��������
����� �������� ,�������

�	""������ ����� �
� �	�	��� �

	�� �������� ���� ����� ���$�
"� �����������
� �������
���	�� �������
��������	
��� �
��7��+
���7����� ������*� ���$�� ��� ���$�
"�
�""��"������������ �,������������������ ����� �����$�	��$�������������	���
�1�����������
"��	����$�������	
��5��������
�������
�����
����������������
���
�������������

�
'���� ���	�+����������������������
������
�
?� �"7�"@��%�#("��"@��#(��&����7"��&��"�
�&)"@��*�����1����
�
9��� 2�����:���� �
����	���� ���� ��������
� ���� �����$���� ����
�$��������"����
�
���

�����$��+*� $����� ����� �
��� ������� �
� ���� 8	�� ����� ���$�
"� ����
������
�����
����������������!�����������

�
9��� /	�������������������*�2�����:�����1���
����������������"	���
�������,�������

�
���� ��������
��������
"���������"����������
�������������$�	���������	�����
����� �
� 8	�� ������ ����
� ����	����*�,������� �
�� �� �������$�	�� ���� ���
��-	������ ��� ����+� ������ ��"��������� �
�������� ����� ����
�	��� ����� ���$���	�� ���
����� �
�� ��������� � 2����� :���� ���� ������� ����� ���� $�	�� ��� �������
"� ��
����
�������,��������������
�$�7������
�������
"�(������
�������
"��
��
��"������
"��������
�����������

�
9��� .
� ��"���� ��� ����"�����'��*�!����<�� ����
<�� 
����� ����� �
�� ���� ���,�������

���� ����
���� ����
�
"� �
� ���� 
�$������ �����
�	��� �
�� -	������$������� ����
����
�
"�$�������	������ �2�����:�����1���
��� ���������������
�	��� ����
�
"�
$��� 
��� ����	����� ����	"�� ,������� ��� ���� ����
��
"� ���������� �
��
4�

�
"��	� ����������$������-	��������	
�����+������
�
"���������������	��
��������������
������	
�����#�����
��1���
��������,������������������	��
"��	��$�����
��	��"��� �������
�� ����
�
"�������
���	��������� ����� �����	�����
������	������
�	�������
��
���"���
�����
	�����������������
�
"���������
���
�����,���������������

�
9��� 2���
� ���� ���� ��� ����
��
��� ��� ����
�
"� ������
�� �
�� ��
���
�� ���	
��

,������� 	
������
��
"� ��� ��� �������
����
*� 2���"�� 2����� $������� ����
�	""�����
��
�����"�����'�%����������������
���� �������
����
��������	��������
��,�������0��#���$���%#'��-��&2��

�
9�%� /��$�
"���-	�����
� �����!����<������
<�*�2�����:������
������� ��������������

�������� ��+��� ,������� �
�� �� ������*� $��
� �������
"� ������ ��"������ ���
�
�������� ����*� $������� ����� $������ ��� ����� ������ �������� $������� ����� ����
������	��������
������
���
����

�
9�'� 8�
����
� ������ =��*� ���� .
����
��
�� 4����
*� ���
+��� 2����� :���� ���� ����

�����
��� �
� ���� �������� �7������ �
����������������,������� �����
���������
���������������������
���	�������������+����

�
9�9� ���	�+����������������������
������

Page 3



���-&'��� #����'��������
�
;� �#&�-&�- ���))�##""���&%#�.��*�!��4�&))"�����1�9��
�
&��� 2����� :���� �
����	���� ���� ������� ��� ���� ����������� � 2����� :���� ���$� ����

���������5������
���
���������������������
�������>�������������
"����������
$����
������������	��
������2�����:�������*���$����*��1���
������2����
�
���
���������$�������+�
"��������
"���
��������
�����������������
"������
������
������������
�	���������
��$������������
�����������������	������
"�����
�
!�������
���	� ������������.��$���
��������������,�����������
��
"��������
������
�� $��� �$��� ��� �����
�� �
�� 
��� ��
�������� ��� ������������
�	���-	�
��*���������������$����
���������������$���	
�+�����������������
"�
$�	��������������������� �������������0����������

�
&��� ���	�+���������������������5��$��+����"�������������������������������
�

�
���&#�����%�#("�)""#��4$�'����� �9��%�����
�
��4�"-�
�
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAABB�
�
�(&����%���))�##""�
�
���#&�#$�
=��������+��*�2����
�
������������
�
�
�

Page 4



 

 

  

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF LEGAL, HR AND REGULATORY 
SERVICES/MONITORING OFFICER  

 
 
 
 
COMPLAINT AGAINST 
CLLR MICHAEL LEVY 
 
 
 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE - 
4 November 2013 
 
 

 
Classification 
 
Public 
Investigator’s 
report 
 
Exempt 
 
Witness 
statements 
correspondence 
  

 
Enclosures 
 
Investigator’s report 
 
Documentation 
submitted by Cllr 
Levy 
 
Decision of the 
Assessment Sub-
Committee  

 
Ward(s) affected 
 
Not applicable 
 

 
 
 

1  SUMMARY 

1.1 On 23 February 2013 Cllr Vincent Stops submitted a written complaint against Cllr 
Michael Levy, relating to his alleged conduct at Planning Sub-Committee on 1 
February 2012. 

1.2 On 29 March 2012 Standard Assessment Sub-Committee considered the complaint 
and ordered an investigation into the complaint. The matter was referred to the 
Deputy Monitoring Officer/Assistant Director for Legal and Democratic Services to 
investigate. 

1.3 Regrettably for a number of confidential reasons the investigation did not proceed at 
the speed that both the Monitoring Officer and her Deputy would have liked.  The 
matter was therefore delayed for which an apology is extended to both Cllrs Stops 
and Levy. 

1.4 On 6 June 2013 the Investigator’s report was presented to Assessment Sub-
Committee and a decision was made to refer the matter for a full hearing by 
Standards Committee 

1.5 A hearing was scheduled for 14 October 2013 but Cllr Levy advised that he would 
not be available on that date and asked that it be scheduled for 4 November 2013. 
 

  2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 Standards Committee is requested to hear Cllr Stops’ complaint against Cllr Levy. 

  
  3. RELATED DECISIONS 

3.1 Reports of 29 March 2012 and 6 June 2013 to Assessment Sub-Committee. 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



 

 

 
 
4. FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
4.1. There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

 
5. COMMENTS OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF LEGAL, HR AND 

REGULATORY SERVICES 
  

5.1 The original complaint was made under the previous Code of Conduct.  A new 
Code of Conduct came to existence under the Localism Act 2012 on 1 July 2012.  
This complaint is being dealt with under the new Code of Conduct. 
 

5.2 The Investigator concluded his investigation in May 2013 and found evidence of 
breaches of paragraph 1.1, 1.2 and 6.1 of the Planning Code of Practice.  He also 
found evidence of breach of paragraph 11.3 of the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 
 
 

Gifty Edila 
Monitoring Officer/Corporate Director of Legal, HR and Regulatory Services 
 
List of Appendices 
 
Investigator’s report 

 
Documentation submitted by Cllr Levy  
 
Decision of the Assessment Sub-Committee 
 
 

Page 6



REPORT 
 
 
Case reference 495041 
 
Report of an investigation by Stephen Rix appointed by the monitoring officer 
for the London Borough of Hackney into an allegation concerning Councillor 
Michael Levy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Updated: 17 September 2013 

Page 7



ContentsContentsContentsContents    
 

1. Executive summary 

2. Michael Levy's official details 

3. The relevant legislation and protocols 

4. The evidence gathered 

5. Summary of the material facts 

6. Michael Levy's additional submissions 

7. Observations of the Independent Person 

8. Reasoning as to whether there have been failures to comply with the 

Code of Conduct 

9. Finding 

 

 

Appendix A  Schedule of evidence taken into account and list of  

   unused material 

 

Page 8



1.  Executive summary 

 

1.1. On 23/02/12 Cllr Vincent Stops submitted a written complaint against 

Cllr Levy arising from Planning Sub-Committee’s meeting on 01/02/12. 

Cllr Stops’ complaint is that at the December 2010 Planning Sub-

Committee Cllr Levy declared a personal and prejudicial interest in an 

application for 16 Leabourne Road.  Cllr Levy then spoke in support of 

the application at the Sub-Committee and took no part in its 

deliberations. At a Planning Sub-Committee meeting on 01/02/12 

Members considered an identical application to that considered in 

December 2010 relating to the same property – 16 Leabourne Road. In 

his role as Chair, Cllr Stops prompted Cllr Levy as to whether he had a 

prejudicial interest.  Cllr Levy said no and he took part in the 

Committee’s consideration of the matter and voted on it. In Cllr Stops’ 

view, Cllr Levy had a personal and prejudicial interest in the matter. 

 

1.2. Cllr Levy was involved with and supported the application for 16 

Leabourne Road prior to the Planning Sub-Committee meeting on 

01/02/12. Under the old Codes of Conduct he should therefore have 

declared a personal and prejudicial interest at that meeting and taken 

no part in the deliberation and voting on it. Under the current Codes of 

Conduct he did not hear the planning application with an open mind. 

 

2.  Michael Levy's official details 

 

2.1. Michael Levy was first elected to office on 20 December 2007 and was 

re-elected on 6 May 2010 for a term of 4 years.  

 

2.2. Michael Levy currently serves on the Planning Sub-Committee. He has 

also served on the North East Neighbourhood Committee and 

Community Safety and Social Inclusion Scrutiny Commission in recent 

years. 

 

Page 9



2.3. Michael Levy gave a written undertaken to observe the Code of 

Conduct on 10 May 2010. 

 

2.4. Michael Levy has not attended any of the training sessions held by the 

Monitoring Officer on the Code of Conduct in relation to the relevant 

period. 

 

3.  The relevant legislation and protocols 

 

3.1.  The complaint was originally made on 23 February 2012 under the 

Codes of Conduct that existed at the time. The Localism Act 2011 

introduced a new ethical framework which came into force on 1 July 

2012. The Council adopted new Codes of Conduct under the Act which 

came into force on 1 July 2012. This complaint is therefore being dealt 

with under the new arrangements.  

 

3.2. The provisions in the old Code of Conduct For Members that were 

allegedly breached are as follows:  

 

• Paragraph 8.1(b): “You have a personal interest in any business  

of your authority where either – (b) a decision in relation to that 

business might reasonably be regarded as affecting your well-

being or financial position or the well-being or financial position 

of a relevant person to a greater extent than the majority of other 

council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the electoral 

division or ward, as the case may be, affected by the decision;” 

 

• Paragraph 8.2(a): "In sub-paragraph 8.1(b), a relevant person is 

- (a) a member of your family or any person with whom you have 

a close association" 

 

• Paragraph 10.1: "Subject to sub-paragraph 10.2, where you 

have a personal interest in any business of your authority you 

also have a prejudicial interest in that business where the 

Page 10



interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of 

the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that 

it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the public interest." 

 

• Paragraph 12.1: "Subject to sub-paragraph 12.2, where you 

have a prejudicial interest in any business of your authority - (a) 

you must withdraw from the room or chamber where a meeting 

considering the business is being held..."  

 
3.3. Under the new Code of Conduct For Members the relevant provisions 

are as follows: 

 

• Paragraph 8.1: “You have a disclosable pecuniary interest if it is 

of a description specified in regulations made by the Secretary 

of State and either: (a) it is an interest of yours, or (b) it is an 

interest of: (i) your spouse or civil partner; (ii) a person with 

whom you are living as husband and wife, or (iii) person with 

whom you are living as if you were civil partners and you are 

aware that that other person has the interest. 

 

• Paragraph 10.1: “If you attend a meeting and are aware that you 

have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter to be 

considered, or being considered, at that meeting, you must – 

subject to paragraph 12.1 below – disclose that interest to the 

meeting, and – unless you have obtained a dispensation – you 

cannot participate in any further discussion on the matter and 

must leave the meeting room whilst the matter is under 

discussion and voting takes place.” 

 

• Paragraph 11.3: “When contractual, financial, consent, 

permission or licence matters are under consideration and you 

have actively engaged in supporting an individual or 

organisation on the matter, you cannot participate in the meeting 

as a member of the Committee and must leave the meeting 

whilst the matter is under discussion and voting takes place.” 

Page 11



 

• Paragraph 15.1: “Where you have been involved in campaigning 

in your political role on an issue which does not impact on your 

personal and/or professional life, you should not be prohibited 

from participating in a decision in your political role as a 

Member. However, you should avoid placing yourself under any 

financial or other obligation to outside individuals or 

organisations that might seek to influence you in the 

performance of your official duties.” 

 

• Paragraph 15.2: “When making a decision in such situations, 

you should consider the matter with an open mind and on the 

facts before the meeting at which the decision is to be taken.” 

 

3.4 The provisions in the old Planning Code of Conduct For Councillors 

that were allegedly breached are as follows:  

 

• Paragraph 1.4: "Members of the Planning Sub-Committee 

should not organise or in any way be involved in the support of 

or opposition to planning applications or enforcement actions 

other than as permitted in the Constitution. Similarly, Members 

of the Planning Sub-Committee should not allow themselves to 

be lobbied by members of the public..." 

 

• Paragraph 1.7: "If a Sub-Committee Member does decide to 

become involved in organising the support of or opposition to a 

planning application, or has allowed themselves to be lobbied, 

then that Member should accordingly declare an interest at the 

beginning of the committee meeting ... and remove themselves 

from the room when the Planning Sub-Committee is determining 

the item in question. By becoming involved in a planning 

application prior to the committee meeting other than to read the 

Planning Officer's report or to attend a site visit accompanied by 

Page 12



the Planning Officers, the Member risks forfeiting their right to 

take part in the discussion or vote on that particular item." 

 

• Paragraph 3.1 says: "A Sub-Committee Member with a 

prejudicial interest must withdraw from the Committee meeting 

as soon as it becomes apparent that the matter in which they 

have a prejudicial interest is being considered...The Sub-

Committee Member must not participate in any discussion on 

the matter in the Sub-Committee meeting or vote on or be 

present at the vote on that matter. A Sub-Committee Member 

may not in any way seek to improperly influence a decision 

about that matter."  

 

3.5 Under the new Planning Code of Practice for Members the relevant 

provisions are as follows: 

 

• Paragraph 1.1: “Planning Sub-Committee Members have to 

retain an open mind on any application as they are a part of the 

decision making process and cannot be seen to side with either 

the applicant or those who are making representations at the 

meeting at which the application would be determined. Adhering 

to the following rules will also ensure that public confidence in 

the Sub-Committee is maintained and serve to minimise the 

prospect of non-planning related matters affecting the judgment 

of Sub-Committee Members.” 

 

• Paragraph 1.2: “As decision makers, Sub-Committee Members 

should neither be seen to be pre-judging the application, nor to 

be influenced by those with whom they have a special 

relationship such as fellow Council Members, at any stage prior 

to determination. Sub-Committee Members should similarly 

avoid making public statements as to their support of, or 

opposition to, any application.” 

 

Page 13



• Paragraph 1.4: “Council Members should represent the best 

interests of residents. Sometimes they may find themselves in a 

difficult situation where they are sent lobbying material. If a 

Council Member finds themselves in such a situation they need 

to decide whether they wish to sit on the Sub-Committee and 

hear the application or to represent the interests of their 

residents.” 

 

• Paragraph 1.7: “If Sub-Committee Members are under any 

doubt as to the implications of a view which they might have 

expressed or a role which they might have played on a planning 

matter before going to the Sub-Committee meeting, they should 

seek advice from the Corporate Director of Legal, HR and 

Regulatory Services in advance of the relevant meeting or from 

the Legal Adviser to the Planning Sub-Committee before the 

meeting begins.” 

 

• Paragraph 6.1: “Members must hear all planning applications 

with an open mind. They must not make up their mind on an 

application before they have heard the full application and any 

representations made for or against it.” 

 

• Paragraph 6.2: “Where you have been involved in campaigning 

in your political role on an issue which does not impact on your 

personal and/or professional life, you should not be prohibited 

from participating in a decision in your political role as a 

Member. You may have even directly or indirectly expressed a 

view on a matter which may be relevant to a decision. However, 

you should avoid placing yourself under any financial or other 

obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might seek 

to influence you in the performance of your official duties.” 

 

• Paragraph 6.3: “When making a decision in such situations, you 

should consider the matter with an open mind and on the facts 

Page 14



before the meeting at which the decision is to be taken. If a 

Member has made up their mind before the meeting they should 

therefore not hear the application.” 

 

• Paragraph 7.1: “Members should only consider the merits of an 

application as set out before the Sub-Committee, as allowed for 

under the relevant legislation, before determining whether or not 

to approve an application with or without additional conditions. 

Sub-Committee Members must not give weight to non-planning 

matters that may be raised by any party involved in the Sub-

Committee meeting. 

 

3.3 Section 25 of the Localism Act 2011 came into force on 15 January 

 2012.   It deals with predetermination and provides: 

 

25 Prior indications of view of a matter not to amount to 
predetermination etc 

(1) Subsection (2) applies if— 

(a) as a result of an allegation of bias or predetermination, or 

otherwise, there is an issue about the validity of a decision of a relevant 

authority, and 

(b) it is relevant to that issue whether the decision-maker, or any of 

the decision-makers, had or appeared to have had a closed mind (to 

any extent) when making the decision. 

(2) A decision-maker is not to be taken to have had, or to have 

appeared to have had, a closed mind when making the decision just 

because— 

(a) the decision-maker had previously done anything that directly or 

indirectly indicated what view the decision-maker took, or would or 

might take, in relation to a matter, and 

(b) the matter was relevant to the decision. 

(3) Subsection (2) applies in relation to a decision-maker only if that 

decision-maker— 

Page 15



(a) is a member (whether elected or not) of the relevant authority, or 

(b) is a co-opted member of that authority. 

(4)  In this section— 

… 

 “decision”, in relation to a relevant authority, means a decision 

made in discharging functions of the authority, functions of the 

authority's executive, functions of a committee of the authority or 

functions of an officer of the authority (including decisions made in 

the discharge of any of those functions otherwise than by the 

person to whom the function was originally given); 

 

(5) This section applies only to decisions made after this section 

comes into force, but the reference in subsection (2)(a) to anything 

previously done includes things done before this section comes into 

force. 

 

4 The evidence gathered 

 

4.4 I have taken into account the evidence from Cllr Michael Levy (ML), 

Cllr Vincent Stops (VS), the Governance officer for the Sub-Committee 

(EP), the legal adviser at the meeting (BB), Head of Development 

Management (FN), Planning Officer (JT), Graham Loveland Interim AD 

(GL), Planning Officer (JM) and Enforcement Manager (MJ).. 

 

Prior to Planning Sub-Committee meeting on 9 December 2010 

 

4.5 The Planning Sub-Committee meeting on 9 December 2010 was 

preceded by a series of meetings.  According to JT, the meetings 

involved GL, ML, Councillor Steinberger, Mervin Shayer (Planning 

Agent) and the applicants.  ML said he did not attend any meetings 

with Mervin Shayer. JT said these meetings took place over the course 

of a few months and involved discussions on the acceptability or 

otherwise of the proposed planning application on 16 Leabourne Road.  

Page 16



There were also a series of emails exchanges between JT, GL and 

Mervin Shayer relating to the application and a series of discussions 

regarding amendments to the proposal which were subsequently put 

forward to be considered.  

 

4.6 JT said ML's role was to facilitate the meeting though at the time it was 

more Cllr Steinberger who had a bigger part to play in the meetings.  

JT said Cllr Steinberger and ML tried to convince planning officers and 

GL that the application should be considered acceptable despite it not 

being in accordance with the development policies and general design 

guidelines.  There were a series of emails communicating this between 

JT and Mervin Shayer.   

 

4.7 JT said GL had an open door policy and that Councillor Steinberger 

and ML often approached GL regarding issues in the N16 area.  JT 

said 16 Leabourne Road was just one of quite a few proposals that GL 

instigated meetings on and with hindsight it appeared GL actually 

supported the proposals contrary to other officers’ opinion.  

 

4.8 The application was sent to committee with a recommendation for 

refusal which FN said was unusual because officers had delegated 

authority for refusal.  FN said the reason why it went to committee was 

because officers didn’t support the application, but GL did even though 

there were planning issues.   

 

4.9 FN said it was unusual to have an Assistant Director supporting an 

application when officers are not. She said in her time at Hackney 

officers and the AD don’t usually come to a different view.  She said the 

development plan is the document referred to and as far as planning 

officers were concerned the application was clearly contrary to policy.  

She said in addition the application had been refused prior to the 

application for appeal.  She said officers are normally very consistent in 

their decision making.  She said at the time GL wanted to support the 

application as he was more sympathetic to the Orthodox Jewish 

Page 17



Community, their needs for housing etc. and that is why she believes 

GL allowed the application through to committee. 

 

4.10 FN thought ML supported the application as she thought he was the 

ward member and there were a number of housing issues in Stamford 

Hill. She said there are lots of large Orthodox Jewish families there and 

because the community want to stay together there is a pressure for 

housing.  

 

4.11 GL said he was aware ML took an interest in the site and a number of 

other sites in the north of the borough.  He said he was aware that ML 

had an interest in this particular application and GL thought ML said he 

was intending to speak on the item and then arrange for a substitute for 

the meeting. 

 

 Planning Sub-Committee meeting on 9 December 2010 

 

4.12 At the Planning Sub-Committee meeting on 9 December 2010 ML 

declared a personal and prejudicial interest in the application. He 

spoke in support of the application pursuant to Paragraph 3.2 of the old 

Planning Code for Members, but took no part in its deliberations. FN 

said the application was refused even though ML and GL supported it.  

 

 Prior to Planning Sub-Committee meeting on 1 February 2012 

 

4.13 After the December 2010 meeting and prior to the Planning Sub-

Committee meeting on 1 February 2012, ML says he had no 

involvement with the planning application for 16 Leabourne Road. He 

said once the meeting [in December 2010] was over it was finished.  

He said the applicant's wife came to the December meeting and he 

commiserated with her. He said he was contacted by the applicant 

prior to the February 2012 meeting and said he didn't want to get 

involved with it. He said it was about 15 months before and the 

applicant had said there had been a material change in circumstance. 

Page 18



He said that he stepped back from it and to the best of his recollection 

that was the extent of his involvement after the December 2010 

meeting. This is at odds with the oral evidence of JT, FN and GL all of 

whom said ML was involved with the application prior to the February 

2012 meeting. 

 

4.14 JT said he had emails that showed ML was in discussions with GL. He 

said none of the emails were from ML, but they did refer to him. He 

referred to an email from GL’s PA to GL, FN and JM and cc to JT dated 

06/09/11 at 14:24  Subject: 16 Leabourne Rd – “Dear all, You should 

know that Cllr levy has just phoned again for Graham about this and is 

in turn being pressed by the agent.  I’ve explained Graham is in back to 

back meetings today and most of tomorrow so I’d chase.  Regards.  J.” 

 

4.15 JT referred to an email from GL to FN and JM c.c. to JT dated 

31/08/11.  Subject: 16 Leabourne Rd.  He referred to the reference to 

ML in the penultimate line which reads “You’ll want to know that I have 

been pressed by Cllr Levy on this”. 

 

4.16 JT also referred to an email from GL to FN, JM c.c. to JT dated 

08/09/11.  Subject:  16 Leabourne Rd which read: “Cllr Levy 

buttonholed me yesterday evening about this.  Are we in crisis?!!” 

 

4.17 JT was not certain what ML's purpose or motive was. He speculated 

that ML wanted an opinion on what officers' stance would be on 16 

Leabourne Rd following a favourable appeal decision on 22 Leabourne 

Road. JT then referred to an email from FN dated 08/09/11 in response 

to GL's email about being buttonholed: "Graham, he approached me 

last night about 16 Leabourne after committee ended.  I told him my 

views on it (that I didn’t feel there was a need to change our stance on 

it as a result of the decision on 22).  We must have discussed it for at 

least 30 mins, but I stressed that we still had to have a discussion with 

you though.  Regards FN.”   

 

Page 19



4.18 JT said regardless of what ML was discussing with GL or why ML was 

approaching GL, ML would have been in support of the application. JT 

said in his opinion he believed ML was in support of the application 

prior to the February 2012 meeting given the similarities between the 

two applications. 

 

4.19 FN said ML approached GL prior to the February 2012 meeting 

probably campaigning to get officers to take a different approach. She 

said on receipt of the third application GL exercised his powers as AD 

to accept it for consideration. She said given the background to the 

application and on being approached by ML, GL wanted to give it his 

support.  She said what GL really wanted officers to do was to approve 

it under delegated powers but she told him that officers could not as 

there were clearly planning issues.  She said ML was definitely 

supporting the application. It was put to FN that ML may have been 

trying to get it re-heard by Committee. She said not and that ML was 

trying to get officers to change their minds and position.  She said the 

site had had two refusals and two appeal decisions against it so ML 

was trying to get officers to change their minds given the 

circumstances of the individual that lived there - that the applicant 

really needed the extension to her house.  She said ML was definitely 

an advocate for the application. 

 

4.20 FN was asked to comment on the email from her to GL and JM sent on 

08/09/2011 which read: “Graham, he approached me last night about 

16 Leabourne after committee ended.  I told him my views on it (that I 

didn’t feel there was a need to change our stance on it as a result of 

the decision on 22).  We must have discussed it for at least 30 mins, 

but I stressed that we still had to have a discussion with you though.”  

She said ML was trying to get officers to agree that because the 

Council lost the appeal on 22 Leabourne that officers needed to take a 

different view on 16 Leabourne and how the lady there needed her 

extension.  She said she tried to give ML her view which was that even 

though the Council had lost the appeal on 22 it still didn't change the 

Page 20



position on 16 because 16 had it’s own planning history where two 

separate inspectors, both found that the Council’s position to refuse 

permission was correct. FN said that ML should have declared a 

personal and prejudicial interest at the February 2012 meeting.   

 

4.21 On the nature of ML's involvement prior to the February 2012 meeting 

GL explained that there is a particular contention in that part of the 

borough to do with the Orthodox Jewish Community seeking 

extensions to houses which are challenging at times and go beyond 

what planning policy would allow.  He said what ML and a number of 

other members were keen to explore was the extent to which they 

could ‘push the policy envelope’, asking is this really contrary to policy, 

are there mitigating items that would allow it to be agreed?  He said 

officers were concerned to ensure that the particular policy that doesn’t 

allow big front roof extensions would be breached.  He said that policy 

which is in housing supplementary guidance talks about the character 

of the street and proximity to other properties which may have already 

had, historically for whatever reason, big bulky front extensions.  He 

said it all hinged on number 22 Leabourne Road that got permission for 

a front extension and built it bigger than that which was consented.  

The Council took enforcement action against that.  When 22 

Leabourne Rd was referenced as setting a precedent in nearby 

property, it was there but it was not consented.  He said that is what 

the dialogue hinged on.  In the intervening period 22 Leabourne Rd 

became regularised through the appeal process. He said he thought 

the applicants appealed against the enforcement action.  He said in the 

intervening period between 9th December and 1st February 22 

Leabourne Rd became a lawful development by virtue of an appeal.  

GL said his dialogue with ML, as he recalled, was very much around 

exploring what was happening with 22 Leabourne Rd because as ML 

would see it that would make a material change.  He said as officers 

we took the same view and that was why officers recommended 16 

Leabourne Rd the second time around for approval, because there was 

a material change in circumstances in relation to 22 Leabourne Rd.  

Page 21



GL's recollection is that the dialogue he had with ML in the period from 

9 December to 1 February 2012 was around that sort of issue. 

 

4.22 GL commented on the email dated 31/08/11 from him to FN and JM 

c.c. to JT and what ML's motive was. GL said that ML knew that there 

had been a change in the dynamics of the case by virtue of the 22 

Leabourne Rd decision and ML knew what GL's view was.  GL said he 

had been very upfront about that. GL said the email represented his 

personal view and that in light of it he probably had conversations with 

ML. He said the pressure he was referring to was ML wanting to know 

if he had progressed the dialogues, and that was what the email was 

doing.   

 

4.23 GL was asked what he meant in his email to FN and JM of 08/09/2011 

when he said: “Cllr Levy buttonholed me yesterday evening about this.  

Are we in crisis?!!”  GL said he thinks what he would have meant by 

that was there were conflicting opinions amongst officers about the 

importance of 22 Leabourne Rd and its significance on the application, 

and it was creating some sort of crisis in terms of officers reaching a 

conclusion.   

 

4.24 GL said ML was not supporting the application and just wanted it 

reconsidered. GL said ML was no fool, and understood all that.  In GL's 

view he said ML was at pains in their dialogue, and he thinks ML made 

this point overtly himself, that what he was doing was simply looking at 

the change in planning circumstances by virtue of 22 Leabourne Rd.  

GL said that at no time did ML say ‘You have to approve this’.  GL said 

it wasn’t about that and that ML was wanting to understand what 22 

Leabourne Rd meant in terms of how it might affect officers thinking. 

GL said ML had been careful to position himself in such a way that he 

could fairly say he didn’t have a prejudicial or personal interest.  

 

4.25 ML commented in his response on the draft report that the 

conversations he had with GL as the Ward Councillor were centered 

Page 22



solely around the appeal decision on 22 Leabourne Road and on how it 

may affect Officer’s thinking. He said any follow up calls that were 

made were to ask for updates on what the legal opinion on the matter 

was, as a result of the successful appeal at 22 Leabourne Rd. He said 

he believed this was borne out by JT at paragraph 50 of his witness 

statement. 

 

4.26 [Following receipt of ML’s comments on the draft report] VS was asked 

to clarify whose decision it was to refer the planning application back to 

February 2012 planning sub-committee. VS said he could not recall 

with absolute certainty as it was too long ago. He said that he would 

have only known about the issue had officers approached him about it. 

He said if asked by officers he imagined that he would have wanted it 

to come to committee. His recollection is that GL asked for his view 

and he would have said that it should go on the agenda. He said as it 

came to Committee previously it would seem logical for GL to suggest 

that it came to Committee again. He said as Chair of Planning he 

wants to see that the Council applies its policies and that the Council's 

policies, not his, seek to resist front roof extensions of this kind. 

 

4.27 [Following receipt of ML’s comments on the draft report] ML 

subsequently provided email evidence that showed it was VS who 

requested the application be returned to committee in an email sent on 

5 October 2011 from VS to GL. 

 

4.28 [Following receipt of the 2nd draft report] VS provided two emails that 

confirmed it was he who asked for the application to return to Planning 

Sub-Committee. 

 

4.29  Taking into account the evidence of JT, FN and GL I consider that on 

the balance of probabilities ML was involved with the application prior 

to the Planning Sub-Committee meeting on 1 February 2012 to the 

extent detailed by those officers. I am further persuaded by the 

evidence of JT and FN that on the balance of probabilities ML was in 

Page 23



support of the application prior to the meeting to the extent that at the 

Planning Sub-Committee meeting on 1 February 2012 he had pre-

determined to vote the application through for permission and did not 

have an open mind. 

 
 Planning Sub-Committee meeting on 1 February 2012 

 

4.30 VS prompted ML on whether he had any interest to declare before the 

item and said to ML that as he declared an interest last time had he got 

an interest this time. ML said no, as it was a new application with a 

material change so he was okay to stay in the room. VS says he 

prompted ML again and reminded him that he did speak on behalf of 

the applicant previously. ML says either he or VS sought legal advice 

from BB. According to ML the advice given by BB was that it was left to 

ML to decide whether he had an interest to declare.   

 

4.31 I have also taken account of the following documentary evidence: 

 

• various emails provided to me by JT, Cllr Levy and Cllr Stops 

• minutes of the two planning sub-committee meetings 

• officer's reports relating to the planning application to both 

meetings 

• register of Cllr Levy's pecuniary and other interests for the 

period 28 July 2009 to 2 July 2012  

• comments received from Cllr Levy and Cllr Stops on my draft 

report and 2nd draft report. 
 

5 Summary of the material facts 

 

5.4 Prior to the Planning Sub-Committee meeting on 9 December 2010 Cllr 

Levy was in support of the application. 

 

Page 24



5.5 At the Planning Sub-Committee meeting on 9 December 2010 Cllr 

Levy declared a personal and prejudicial interest in the application. He 

spoke in support of the application and took no part in its deliberations.  

 

5.6  Prior to the Planning Sub-Committee meeting on 1 February 2012, Cllr 

Levy was involved with the application and in support of it to the extent 

of pre-determination. 

 

5.7 At the Planning Sub-Committee meeting on 1 February 2012 Cllr Stops 

prompted Cllr Levy on whether he had any interest to declare before 

the item. Cllr Levy declared no interest and proceeded to be involved in 

the consideration of the item and voted on it.  

 

5.8 Cllr Levy did not have an open mind so should have not have taken 

any part in the deliberations or voting. 

 

6 Michael Levy's additional submissions 

 

6.4 Cllr Levy said in his oral evidence that the application to the February 

2012 meeting was not identical as there had been a material change. 

 

6.5 The application was in fact identical regardless of the changes in 

circumstances. In any event, I have decided that Cllr Levy was in 

involved with and supported the application prior to February's meeting 

and therefore issues of material change are irrelevant.  

 

7.  Observations of the Independent Person 

 

The factual background, distilled only from the papers of the Standards 

Assessment Sub-Committee which have been sent to me, seems to be 

that: 

 

• At the meeting of the Planning Sub-Committee in December 

2010, Cllr Levy declared an interest in an Application (16 

Page 25



Leabourne Road). The papers do not record what was the 

nature of Cllr Levy’s interest. 

 

• At that meeting, Cllr Levy spoke in favour of that Application. 

 

• Having spoken, Cllr Levy took no further part in that agenda 

item. 

 

• At the meeting of the Planning Sub-Committee in February 

2012, the very same Application was again on the agenda.   

 

• On being questioned by the Chair, Cllr Levy declared this time 

that he had no interest in the Application, and played a full part 

in the Committee’s consideration of the matter. 

 

The Complaint seems to be based upon the inference that if Cllr Levy had 

(and declared) an interest at the first meeting, then he must have had the 

same interest at the second meeting, since the matter under consideration 

was “identical”. 

 

It is puzzling that the Planning Committee should have discussed an 

“identical” Application a second time.   

 

Whatever decision the Committee had made at the first discussion would 

surely have been re-applied by officers under delegated authority – there 

being, by definition, no new matter for consideration.   

 

If, nevertheless, this is indeed what happened, then the Committee might 

have supposed that Cllr Levy’s interest would have remained unchanged, and 

thus needed to be declared again. 

 

However, it is conceivable that although the nature of the Application had not 

changed over the period December 2010 to February 2012, Cllr Levy’s 

Page 26



interest in it may have changed, such that he had no declarable interest by 

the time of the February Committee meeting. 

 

The above notes are merely logical analysis of the limited information 

available to me.  The case needs investigation as to the facts of the matter, as 

alluded to above.  The Assessment Committee has wisely referred the case to 

the Monitoring Officer for such investigation. 

 
 
8.  Reasoning as to whether there have been failures to comply with 

the Code of Conduct 

 

8.1 Was Cllr Levy's failure to declare that he did not have an open mind at 

the Planning Sub-Committee meeting on 01/02/12 a breach of the 

current Code of Conduct for Members and Planning Code of Practice 

for Members.   

 

8.2  I will first address whether there have been breaches of the Planning 

Code of Practice paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.4, 1.7, 6.1, 6.2, 6.3 and 7.1 

which are set out at paragraph 3.5 of this report. 

 

8.3  It is my opinion that Cllr Levy breached the Planning Code of Practice 

because he was involved with and supported the application prior to 

the Planning Sub-Committee in February 2012 and did not retain an 

open mind. He should have declared this before the meeting and not 

heard the application. 

 

8.4 I will now address the Code Of Conduct For Members paragraphs 8.1 

and 10.1, 11.3, 15.1 and 15.2 which are set out at paragraph 3.3 of this 

report. 

 

8.5 There is no evidence that Cllr Levy had a pecuniary interest under the 

Code of Conduct for Members that was relevant to this investigation. 

Cllr Levy’s Register of Members Interests for the relevant period 

disclosed no pecuniary interest relevant to this investigation. Further, it 

Page 27



is my opinion that Cllr Levy did not breach paragraphs 15.1 and 15.2 of 

the Code of Conduct For Members as there is no evidence that the 

criteria in paragraph 15.1 was met i.e. that he placed himself under any 

financial or other obligation to outside individuals or organisations that 

might seek to influence him in the performance of his official duties.  

 

8.6 There is evidence he breached paragraph 11.3 as he had actively 

engaged in supporting the application and thus he should not have 

participated in the Planning Sub-Committee meeting on 01/02/12 as a 

member of the Committee and should have left the meeting whilst the 

matter was under discussion and voting took place. 

 

9.  Finding 

 

9.1  Cllr Levy breached the Planning Code of Practice for Members in 

particular paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 6.1 as he did not hear the planning 

application with an open mind.  

 

9.2 Cllr Levy did breached the Code of Conduct For Members in particular 

paragraph 11.3 as he had actively engaged in supporting the 

application and thus he should not have participated in the Planning 

Sub-Committee meeting on 01/02/12 as a member of the Committee 

and should have left the meeting whilst the matter was under 

discussion and voting took place. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28



Appendix A 

Schedule of evidence taken into account 

 

Case No: 495041 

 

Public 

 

Doc No Description Pages 

1 Allegation letter 31 – 32             

2 Code of Conduct for Members 33 – 44  

3 Planning Code of Practice 45 – 52   

4 Section 25 Localism Act 2011 53 – 54  

5 Planning Sub-Committee Report dated 03/11/2010 55 – 98  

6 Minutes of Planning Sub-Committee on 09/12/2010 99 – 146   

7 Planning Sub-Committee Report dated 07/10/2011 147 – 162  

8 Minutes of Planning Sub-Committee on 01/02/2012  163 – 200   

 

Independent Person’s Observations 

Doc No Description Pages 

9 Document dated 25/09/2012 201 – 202    

 

 

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



DOCUMENT 1

Page 31



Page 32



DOCUMENT 2

Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



DOCUMENT 3

Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



DOCUMENT 4

Page 53



Page 54



Document 5

Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



DOCUMENT 6

Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



DOCUMENT 7

Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



DOCUMENT 8

Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



DOCUMENT 9

Page 201



Page 202



Page 203

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 204

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 205

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 208

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 209

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 210

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 211

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 220

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 221

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 226

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 227

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 228

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 229

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 230

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 231

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 238

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 239

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 244

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 245

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 254

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 255

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 258

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 259

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 264

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 265

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 266

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 267

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 268

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 269

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 270

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 271

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 272

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 273

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 274

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 275

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 282

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 283

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 284

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 285

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 286

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 287

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 288

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 289

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 294

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 295

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 308

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 309

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 312

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 313

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 316

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 317

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 318

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 319

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 322

This page is intentionally left blank



Information requested to be included by Cllr Levy 
 
Having gone through the contents of the Agenda I find nothing there that is 
not already included.  
 
However I am attaching, for the Member's particular attention, the relevant 
pages from the second draft report, that crucially indicates the view of the 
Head of Litigation, that there was no breach of the Members Code of Conduct 
and that paragraph 11.3 of the Constitution, is in no way relevant to these 
proceedings. Therefore, at the very least, there existed an element of doubt, 
to which I was not given the benefit of in the subsequently amended final 
report and I wish the Members to be made appropriately aware of these 
alterations, that would help inform and assist their deliberations. 
 
 
 
Cllr Michael Levy  

Page 323



Page 324

This page is intentionally left blank



Document submitted by Cllr Levy

Page 325



Page 326



Page 327



Page 328

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 329



Page 330


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting - 1 July 2013
	4 Standards Committee Hearing - Complaint against Cllr Michael Levy
	Investigation Report
	Document 1 - Allegation Letter
	Document 2 - Code of Conduct for Members
	Document 3 - Planning Code of Practice
	Document 4 - Section 25 Localism Act 2011
	Document 5 - Planning Sub-Committee report dated 03/11/2010
	Document 6 - Minutes of Planning Sub-Committee on 09/12/2010
	Document 7 - Planning Sub-Committee report dated 07/10/2011
	Document 8 - Minutes of Planning Sub-Committee on 01/02/2012
	Document 9 - Independent Person's observations dated 25/09/2012
	List of exempt material
	Document 10a
	Document 10b
	Document 11
	Document 12a
	Document 12b
	Document 12c
	Document 13
	Document 14
	Document 15a
	Document 15b
	Document 16a
	Document 16b
	Document 17
	Document 18
	Document 19
	Document 20a
	Document 20b
	Document 20c
	Document 21
	Document 22
	Document 23
	Documents 24 to 30
	Document 31
	Document 32
	Document 33
	Document 34
	Covering note from Cllr Levy
	Pages of draft report submitted by Cllr Levy
	Decision Notice of the Standards Assessment Sub-Committee 6 June 2013


